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Declaration of the members of the Board of Directors and of other officers of the
company for the financlal statements

Acoording to Arlicla 9, subsections (3} (c) and (7) of the Transparency Requiraments
(Traded Securlties on a Regulated Market) Law of 2007 (‘Law’), we the members of the
Board of Directors and other officers responsible for the financial statements of The Mall of
Engomi (ME) Plc for the year ended 31 December 2018, wa confirm Ihal, according to our

knowledge:
a) The tinanclal statements presanted on pages 13 to 59 were:

() prepared in accordance with International Financlal Reporting Standards as edopted by
the European Unlon and In eccordance with the provisions of subsection (4) of the Acl,

and
() give a true and falr view of assets and liabilitles, financial position and profil of The Mall
of Engomi (ME) Plc, and

b) The Management Report provides a fair overview of the developments and
performance of the business and financlal position of The Mall of Engomi (ME) Ple,
together with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Company,

Members of the Board of Direclors

John George Mavrolordalos - Direstor

George Mouskides « Direclor

Takis Christodoulou - Director

Martin Qlivier - Director

Antonia Constantinou — Financial Gontroller
Nicosla, 24 April 2019
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The Mall of Engomi (ME) Plc

Management Report

1 The Board of Directors presents its report together with the audited financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Principal activities and nature of operations of the Company

2 The principal activity of the Company, which ls unchanged from last year, is the
leasing/granting of rights of use of space of its propaerty, the shopping Mall “The Mall of
Engomi*, for retail/commercial purposes.

Change of financtial year end

3 At the Company’s Board of Directors meeting held on 6 November 2017, the Board
of Directors decided to change the financial year end of the Company from 30 June to 31
December of each respactive year.

4 Due to the change of financial year end from 30 June to 31 December, the
Company's comparative financial information presented in these financial statements
cover the 8 month period from 1 July 2017 to 31 December 2017, whereas the curent
period financial informatian presented cover the year from 1 January 2018 to 31
December 2018. The reason for the change s the fact that the Company's shareholders'
financial year end is 31 December. Therefore, the numbers related o the results and cash
flows of the comparative period (6 months) as presented in these financial statements are
not comparable to the current year's figuras {12 months).

Changes In group structure

5 During the year there were no changes in the structure of the Group. The
Company does not intend to proceed with any acquisitions or mergers.

Review of developments, position and performance of the Company's business

B The Company's tumover for the year ended 31 December 2018 was €3.264.423
compared to €1.627.295 for the six month period ended 31 December 2017. The
operating profit of the Company for the year was €4.123.684 (six months period 2017:
€1.552.786).

7 The profit after tax of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2018 was
€2.863.811 (six months period 2017: €1.003.556).

8 As at 31 December 2018 the Company's total assets amounted to €42.979.329
(2017: €41.028.312) and its net assets amounted to €20.589.401 (2017: net assets
€17.725.290). The financial position, development and performance of the Company as
presented in these financlal statements are considered satisfactory.
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The Mall of Engomi (ME) Plc
Management Report {continued)

Principal risks and uncertainties

] The principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Company are disclosed in
Notes 1, 8 and 7 of the financial statements.

Use of financial instruments by the Company

10  The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk
(Including fair value interest rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk.

11 The Company's risk management programme focuses on the unprediotability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Company's
financial performance. Risk management is carried out by Management under policies
approved by the Board of Directors. Management identifies, evaluates and hedges
financial risks in close co operation with the Company's operating units. The Board
provides written and / or oral principles for overalf risk management, as well as written and
{ or oral policies covering specific areas, such as interest rate risk, credit risk, and
investment of excess liquidity.

Cash flow and fair value Interest rate risk

12 The Company's interest rate risk arises from from long term borrowings. Interest-
bearing assets and borrowings at variable rates expose the Cotmpany to cash flow interest
rate risk. Borrowings at fixed rates exposa the Company to fair value interest rate risk. A
borrowings are at variable rates,

13 As at 31 December 2018, the Company's asset and llabllities which bore vatiable
interest rates amounted to €1.862.329 and €18.845.089 respectively. The Company's
management monitors the interest rate fluctuations on a continuous basis and acts
accordingly. The Company does not apply hedge accounting for cash flow interest rate
tisk.

Credit risk

14 Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, deposits with banks and
financial institutions,contractual cash flows of debt investments carried at amortised cost,
as well as credit exposures to tennants, including outstanding receivables and commitied

transactions.

15 Credit risk Is managed on a group basis. For hanks and financizl institutions, only
those that are highly rated by the Board of Directors are accepted. If lesseas / users are
independently rated, these ratings are uged. Otherwise, if there is no independent rating,
management assesses ihe credit quallty of the lessees / users, taking into account ks
financial position, past experience and other factors. individuat credit limits and credit
terms are set based on the credit quality of the lessee / user in accordance with limits set
by the Board. The utilisation of credit limits is regularly monitored. No credit limits were
exceeded during the reporting pericd, and management does not expect any losses from
non performanca by these counterparties. Sales to lessess { users are setfled in cash or

using major credit cards.
4




The Mall of Engomi (ME) Plc

Management Report {continued)

16 The Company's credit risk arises from trade receivables amounting to €300.966,
financial assets carried at amortised cost amounting to €1.862.329 and bank balances
amounting to €1.303.308. On 1 January 2018 the Company adopted IFRS 8 “Financial
instruments” and its credit risk management policles have been amended accordingly to
take into consideration the expecied credit loss model introduced by IFRS 9. For further
details refer to Note 6 Section Credit risk.

Liquidity risk

17 Management monitors the current liquidity position of the Company based on
expected cash flows and expected revenue receipts. On a long-term basis, liquidity risk is
defined based on the expected future cash flows at the time of entering into new credit
facilities or leases and based on budgeted forecasts. Management believes that itis
successful in managing the Company's liquidity risk.

Future developments of the Company

18  The Board of Directors does not expect any significant changes or developmenis
in the operations, financial position and performance of the Company in the foreseeable
future.

Results

19 The Company's results for the period are set out on paga 13. The profit for the
year is retained.

Share capital

20  There were no changes in the share capital of the Company.

Board of Directors

21 The members of the Board of Directors at 31 December 2018 and af the date of
this report are shown on page 1. All of them were members of the Board throughout the
period ended 31 December 2018.

22 1n accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association Messrs Takis
Christodoulou, John George Mavrokordatos, George Mouskides and Martin Oliviar, refire
ai the next Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election,

23 There were na significant changes in the assignment of respongibilities and
remuneration of the Board of Directors.

Events after the balance sheet date

24 There were no material post balance sheet events, which have a bearing on the
understanding of the financial statements.

(5)




The Mall of Engomi (ME) Plc
Management Report (continued)

Branches

25 The Company did not operate through any branches during the yaar.

Directors’ interests in the Company's share capital

26  The members of the Board of Directors did not contral directly or indirectly any part
of the share capital of the Company, at 31 December 2018 and as at the date of this

report.

27  Excapt from the balances and fransactions disclosed In Note 25 of the financial
statements, there were no cther slignlficant contracts with the Company or its subsidiaries
or refated companies, in which a Director or related parties had a significant interest.

Main shareholders

28  Atthe date of this report, the following shareholders of the Company held directly
or indirectly over 5% of the Company's Issued share capital:

Percentage of shareholding
%

Direct shareholder:
Afterbury Cyprus Limited 99,50
Indirect shareholder:

Atterbury Onroerend Goed Houdster Europe
Cooperatief U.A (Netherlands) through its indirect 54 45
shareholding in Afterbury Cyprus Limited

(©)




The Mall of Engomi (ME) Plc
Management Report (continued)

Indapendent Auditors

20  The Indepandent Auditors, PricowaterhouseCoapere Limited, have expressed thelr
willingness to continue In office. A resoluilon giving authority to the Board of Direclors to
fix thelr remuneration will be proposed at the Annual General Masting.

By Order of the Board

Noosa, 1o MONTRAGO SERVICES LIMITED
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Independent Auditor’s Report
‘To the Members of The Mall of Engomi (ME) Plc

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements of The Mall of Engomi (ME) Ple (the
“Company) give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31 December
2018, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFR.Ss) as adopted by the European Union and the

requiretnents of the Cyprus Companies Law, Cap. 113.

‘What we have audited
We have audited the financial statements whick are presented in pages 13 to 59 and

comprise:
e the statement of financial position at 31 December 2018;

o shatement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2018;

¢ the statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 December 2018;

e the statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2018; and

) thelaj notes to the financial statements, which inchide 2 summary of significant accounting
policies.

The financial reporting framnework that has been applied in the preparation of the financial
statements is International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union and
the requirements of the Cyprus Companies Law, Cap. 113.

Basis for opinion

We conducted ovr audit in aceordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion,

Independence

We remained independent of the Company throughout the period of our appointment in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountanis’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
onr audit of the financial staternents in Cyprus and we have fuifilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code,.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Ltd, PwC Central , 43 Demostheni Severi Avenue , CY-1086¢ Nicosia , Cyprus
P O Box 21612, CY-15091 Nicosia, Cyprus
T: +357 - 22 555 000, F: +357 - 22 555 001, www.puwc.com/cy

PricevmbertmuseConpera Lid is a privete company rogistered in Coprue Nou 1453554 Its reglatored offlen I8 ot 3 Themistocles Darvia Street, CY-1066, Nieosia, A
Hat ol th r's ol iocinding for | w.ha ﬂg‘&rﬂrmw)nlmmdmmmuduﬁoim.llndWmlndﬁrhqllenﬁ?lestha

coTpOTAle NAME, 15 kept by the Secrptury of the company at its reglstered affice, P rofars Lo the Cyprma member firm, PricewsterhousCoopers Lid and may
somdtines referto the Pl setwork. Hach member firm is a sepamgte legal entity. Pleass stz wenw.pvcoomy/sthruciure for further details.
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Key audit matters incorporating the most significant risks of material misstatements,
including assessed risk of material misstatements due to fraud

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance
in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

s il =

Valuation of Investment Propeyty at Fair value

Refer to Note 4, Summary of significant
accounting policies, Note 7, Critical accounting
estimates and judgements and Note 16
Investment property.

Management estimated the fair value of the
Investment Property to be €39.275.000 as at 31
December 2018 representing approximately 91%
of the Company’s total asseta.

The investment property valuations were
dependent on certain key assumptions that
require significant management judgement,
including terminal capitalisation rates, discount
rate and fair market rents. Some of these
estimates and judgements are subject to market
forces and will change over time. The external
valuations as at 31 December 2018 were utilised
hy management in arriving at its estimates.

Our audit procedures in relation to
Management's valuation of Investment
Property included an evaluation of the
Management's and the Management’s
independent external valuer’s competency,
capabilities and objectivity.

We have also assessed the mathematical
accuracy, methodologies used and the
appropriateness of the key assumptions used,
by comparing with general economic and
market specific expectations and engaging
our in-house valuation experts to assess
whether the assumptions used were within a
reasonable range of acceptable assumptions.

Furthermore, we evaluated the adequacy of
the Company’s disclosures in the financial
statements regarding the valuation of its
investment property.

The results of our audit procedures were
satisfactory.
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Reporting on other information
The Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises

the information included in the Management Repott and the Declaration of the members of the
Board of Directors and of other officers of the company for the financial statements but does not

inclode the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial staternents does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing 80, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated, If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We

have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors and those charged with governance for

the Financial Statements

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the finaneial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union and the requirements of the Cyprus Companies Law, Cap. 113, and for such
internal control as the Board of Directors determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
finaneial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is vesponsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Direetors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial teporting
process,

Auditor’s Responsibilifies for the Audit of the Financial Stateinents

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are frae from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high leve] of assurance, butis nota
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material
misstaterment when it exists. Misstatements can arise from frand or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

(19
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As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We alsa:

o« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
andit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

o FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of
aecounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion, Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to rease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, strueture and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves a true and fair view.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the andit and significant andit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

‘We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters.

Report on Other Legal Requirements
Pursuant to the additional requirements of the Auditors Law of 2017, we report the following:

« In our opinion, the management report has been prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Cyprus Companies Law, Cap. 113, and the information given is
consistent with the financial statements.

« In our opinion, and in the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Company and
its environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified material
misstatements in the management report.

1
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Other Matter

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the Company’s members as a
bady in accordance with Section 69 of the Auditors Law of 2017 and for no other purpose. We do
not, in giving this opinion, aceept or assnme responsihility for any other purpose or to any other
person to whose knowledge this repert may come to.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Nicos A.
Theodoulon.

VAL L0

Nicos A. Theodoulon
Certified Public Accountant and Registered Anditor
for and on behalf of

PricewaterhouseCoopers Limited
Certified Pnblic Accountants and Registered Auditors

PwC Central, 43 Demostheni Severi Avenue
CY-21080 Nicosia Cyprus

24 April 2019

(12)




The Mall of Engomi (ME) Plc

Statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2018

Rights for use of space and other income
Administrative expenses

Other income

Other gains - nat

Operating profit

Finance costs

Profit hafore income tax

Income tax expense

Profit and total comprehensive Income for the pattadiyear

Year ended

k) |

December

2018

Note €
8 3.264.423
11 (217.489)
2 91.740
10 086.000
4,123.604

12 747
3.281.947
13 _{418,136)
286301

Earnings per share attributable to the Company's shareholders (cents per share):

Basic and fully diluted - cents {Note 14)

Year ende«
3
Decamber
2018

€

28,64

The notes on pages 17 to 59 are an integral part of these financlal statements.

Forihe
period fram
1 July 2017

to 31
December
2017

€

1.827.205
(123.743)
49,234

1.552.786

1.106.530

102,
1,003,556

Forthe
pariod from
1 July 2017

to 31
December
2017

€

10,04

(13}




The Mall of Engomi (ME) Plc

Statement of financial position
af 31 December 2018

Assefs
Non-ourrent ussels
Fland and aguipmant
Invesiment proparly

Curront assels
Prepaymenle

Trade receivables

Financlal assels at amortiaad cosl
Loan Recefvalie

Other raceivable

Cash in hand and at bank

Tolal assals

Equity and llabllities
Capltal ahd reservas

Shara capital

Capltal Reserve

Reinined eamings

Total equity

Non-current liabflittes

Borrowinga
Doferred Income tax lubiies
Trade and other payablee

Currant liahilitias
Trade and other payablea
Currant Income tax lablRies

Borowings

Total Nablilitea
Totul aguity and llabiHles

34
Decomber
2010

14 £.380
19 38276000
39,280,380

232,338
17 300.968
17 1.462.320

25{) .
18 _1303.309
860883
34870929

18 1.000.000
242,607

ETEYT
20.588.101

17.644.424
247173

20,773,949

23 307.6089
8626
20 _4.300.668

1,618,878
22380208
42873323

Bay

84
207

30.200.000
AR200648

44.303
51.864

1114308
430,073
~L078343
728,665
A1.038312

14,866.758
£.283,008

-5
21020 884

491,480
8,775
—Ba2yu3
—1.382.368
-£2.303.022
AL028.313

On 24 Aprll 2019  the Board of Directors of The Mall of Engomi (ME) Plo authorised

these financlal statemanis for fasue.

John George Mavrokordatos, Diractor M/\b/( ’

Goorge Mousakidas, Diraclar [

The notes on pages 17 to 59 are an fmegral Z of these financlal statements,

(14)




The Mall of Engomi (ME) Plc

Statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 31 December 2018

Share Capital Retamed

capital Reserva eamings™ Total

€ € € €

Balance at 1 July 2017 1000000 _ 242687 _ 15500047 16721734
Comprehensive Income

Proftt for the period - - 1,003,556 _1.003.858

Balance at 31 Dacamber 2017/1 January 2018 1.000.000 212.687 16.512.603 17.725.280
Comprehensive Incomse

Profit for the year - - 28683911 _2.863.811

Balance at 31 Dacemher 2018 JLgoo.000 212667 19376414 20,508,101

N Companles which do not distribute 70% of their profits after tax, as defined by the Speclal Contribuion for ihe
Defence of fha Republic Law, by the and of the two years after the end of tha year of assessment to which the
profits refer, will ba deemed to have distributad this amount as dividend. Special contributicn for defence al 16%
will be payable on such deemed dividand to tha extent {hat ihe shareholders for deemed dividend distribzion
purposes at the end of the perlod of two years from the end of the yaar of assessmani to which the profits refer,
ara Cyprus tax resldants, The speciel contribution for defence rate Increased 1o 17% In respact of profits of year of
assessment 2009 and to 20% In reapsct of profits of years of asseasment 2010 and 2011 and is raduced back la
17% in respact of profite of years of assessment 2012 onwards. The amount of his desmed dividend distribulion
i& reducad by any actual dividend paid out of the prafita of the ralevant year by the end of the perlod of twa years
from the end of the year of assessment to which the profits refer. This spacial cantribution for defencs ls pald by
the Company far the account of the sharsholders.

The notes on pages 17 to 50 are an integral part of these financial statements.

(15)




The Mall of Engomi (ME) Plc

Statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 December 2018

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before income tax
Adjustments for:

Depreciation of plant and equiprnent

Fair value gain of investment properly

interest income

Interest expense

Changes in working capital:
Trade and other recelvables
Trade receivables
Other recelvablos
Prepaymants
Financial aesets at amortised costs
Loan Recelvable
Trade and other payables

Cash generatad from operations

Income tax paid
Net cash generated from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Loan granted to related parties

Loan repayments received from reiated pariles
Interest received

Nat cash {used In)from investing activitles

Cash flows from financing activities
Repaymants of bank bommowings

Interast paid

Net cash used In financeing activitles

Nat Increase In cash and cash squivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at baginning of vear/period (including
tmpact of adoption of IFRS 8 on 1 January 2018)

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year/period

For the

peried from

Year ended 1 July 2017

| to 31

Decembar December

28 2017

Note € €
3.281.947 1.106.530

15 4,258 2.958
i6 (985.000) -
2] {49.028) (27.877)
12 ___a#,747 446,258
3.003.924 1.527.867
- (243.464)

(245.402) -

438.073

(187.952) -
{1.1683,312) -
1.114.303 -
—{208.682) 64,991
2.837.9862 1,349,394
{178.967) {170,117)
_2850.085  _1.179.277
25() {1.159.000) (489.711)
25{iv) 456,983 583.304
17 189

—[699.000) ___ 93.782
(997,284} (417.382)
{738.826) {390.778)
AL738119) __(808.169)
223.968 464,890
1.079.343 614.444

18 1.203.309 1.079,343

The notes on pages 17 to 59 are an integral part of these financial statements.

(16}




The Mall of Engomi (ME) Plc
Notes to the financial statements

1 General information

Country of incorporation

The Company Is incorporated and domiclled in Cyprus as a private limited liabflity
company in accordance with the provisions of the Cyprus Companies Law, Cap. 113 and
listed on the (unregulated) Emerging Companies Market of Cyprus Stock Exchange. its
registered office Is at 3 Verginas Street, The Mall of Cyprus, Strovolos, 2025, Nicosia,

Cyprus.

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Company, which is unchanged from last year, is the
leasing/granting of rights of use of space of its property, the shopping Mall “The Mall of
Engomi”, for retail/commercial purposes.

Change of financial year end

At the Company’s Board of Direclors meeting held on 8 November 2017, the Board of
Directors decided to change the financial year end of the Company from 30 June to 31
Decamber of each respective year,

Due to the change of financial year end from 30 June to 31 Decamber, the Campany's
comparative financial information presented in these financial statements cover the 6
month period from 1 July 2017 to 31 December 2017, whereas the curent period financial
information presented cover the year from 1 Jahuary 2018 to 31 December 2018, The
reason for the change is the fact that the Company's shareholders' financial year end is 31
December, Therefore, the numbers related to the results and cash flows of the
comparative period (6 months) as presented in these financial statements are not
comparable to the current year's figures (12 months).

2 Basls of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as adopted by the European Union
(EU), and the requirements of the Cyprus Companies Law, Cap. 113.

As of the date of the authorization of the financial statements, all International Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (JASB) that
are effective as of 1 January 2018 and are relevant to the Company’s operations have
been adopted by the EU through the endorsement procadure established by the European
Commission.

(17)




The Mall of Engomi (ME) Plc

2 Basis of preparation {(continued)

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements
are set out below in Note 4. Apart from the aceounting policy changes resuiting from the
adoption of IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 effective from 1 January 2018, these policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless ctherwise stated (refer to Notes 3, 4
and 27). The principal accounting policies in respect of financial instruments and ravenue
recognition applied till 31 December 2017 are presented in Note 27.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of investment property.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of cartain
critical accounting estimates and requires management to exercise its judgment in the
process of applying the Company's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the financlal statements are disclosed in Note 7.

3 Adoption of new or revised standards and interpretations

During the current vear the Company adoptad all the new and revised International
Financlal Reporting Standards {IFRS) that are relevant to its operations and are effective
for accounting pariods beginning 1 January 2018, This adoption did nat have a material

effect on the accounting policies of the Company.

4 Summary of significant accounting policies

The principaf accounting policles applied in the preparation of these financial statements
are set out balow. Apart from the accouniing policy changes rasuiting fram the adoption of
JFRS 0 and IFRS 15 effective from 1 January 2018, thesa policies have bean consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise siated, The principal accounting
policies in respect of financial instruments and revenue recagnition applied till 31
December 2017 are presented in Note 27.

Revenue
Recognition and measurement

Revanue represents the amount of consideration to which the Company expeacts 10 be
entitled in exchange for transferring the promised services o the customer, excluding
amounts collected on behalf of third parties (for example, value-added taxes); the
transaction price. The Company includes in the fransaction price an amount of variable
consideration as a result of rebates/discounts only to the extent that it is highly probable
that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognized will not cccur
when the uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

Revenue (continued)

The Company recognises revenue when the parties have approved the contract (in
writing, orally or In accordance with other customary business practices ) and are
committed to perform their respective obligations, the Company can Identify each party's
rights and the payment terms for the goods or services to be fransferred, the contract has
commercial substance (i.e. the risk, timing or amount of the Company's future cash flows
is expected to change as a result of the contraci), it Is probable that the Company will
collect the consideration to which it will be entitied in exchange for sarvices that will be
transferred to the customer and when specific criteria have been met for each of the
Company's contracts with customers.

{N Income from rights for use of space

The income from rights for use of space is recognised on an accrual basis
according to the substance of the relevant adjustments.

{in L ease income

Income atising on operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
lease tarm.

Foreign currency transiation
{n Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the Company's financial statements are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the
functional currency”). The financial statements are presented in Euro (€), which is
the Company's functional and presentation currency.

(i) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items
are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
satflement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange
rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in profit or loss.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax axpense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax Is recognised in
profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or direclly in equity. In this case, the {ax s also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively,
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Current and deferred income tax {continued)

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in the country in which the Company
operates and generates taxable Income, Management perlodically evaluaies positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation. If applicable tax regulation is subject to Interpretation, it establishes
provigion where appropriate on the bagis of amounts expected tc be paid to the tax

authoritles.

Deferred income tax is recognised using the liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assats and Habllities and their carrying amounts In the
financial statements, Howsver, deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
Inttlal recognition of an asset or liability In a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
Defetred income tax is determined using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the
related defarred income tzx asset is realised or the deferred income tax lability is seftled.

The deferred tax ability in relation to investment property that is measured at falr value is
determined assuming the property will be recoverad entlrely through sale.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be avaitable against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset current tax assets against cumrent tax liabilities and when the deferred
income tax assets and [iabilities relata to Income {axes levied by the same taxation
authority on the Company where there [s an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognised as a liability in the
financial statements in the year in which the dividends are appropriately authorised and
are no longer at the discretion of the Company. More specifically, Interim dlvidends are
recognised as a liabllity in the petlod in which these ara authorised by the Board of
Directors and in the case of final dividends, these are recognised in the period in which
these are approved by the Company's shareholders.

Plant and aquipment

Al plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation. Histarical cost
incdludes expendiiure that is directly atiributable to the acquisition of plant and equipment.
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

Plant and equipment {continued)

Depreciation on plant and equlpment is calculated using the siraight-line method to
allocate their cost to their residual values, over their estimated useful fives. The annual
dspreciation rates are as follows:

%
Signs 15
Plant and Machinery 20
Computer Hardware 15

The assets’ residual values and useful fives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
each baiance sheet date.

An asset's carrying amount is writien down immediately to its recoverable amount If the
asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount,

Expenditure for repairs and maintenance of property, plant and equipment is charged to
the profit or loss of the year in which they were incurred. The cost of major renovations
and ofher subseguent expenditure are included in the carrying amount of the asset or
recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably.

Gains and losses on disposal of plant and equipment are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount and are recognised in "other gains/(losses) — net" in profit
or loss.

Leases (rights of use space)

{ eases In which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by
the lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operaiing leases {net
of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged o profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease,

Credit loss aliowance is racognised using a simplified approach at lifetime ECL.. The ECL
is determined in the same way as for financial assets measured at AC and recognised
through an allowance account to write down the receivables' net carrying amotint to the
present value of expected cash flows discounted at the interest rates implicit in the finance
leases. The estimated future cash flows reflect the cash flows that may result from
obtaining and selling the assets subject to the lease.

Rental income

Rental income arising on operafing leases Is recognised on a straight line basis over the
leasge term,
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued}

Investment property

Investment property is held for long-term rental yields and capital appreciation and is not
occupied by the Company. Investment property is carried at fair value, representing open
market value determined annually by the Company's management, after taking Into
consideration all relevant available information, including valuations of independent
valuers, market conditions and other factors. Changes to fair value are recognised as
gains or losses in the Income Statement.

Financial assets ~ Classiflcation

From 1 January 2018, the Company classlfies Its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

» those to be measured subsequently at fair value (efther through OC! or through
profit or loss}, and

] those fo be measured at amortised cost.

The classification and subsequent measuremant of debt financial assets depends on; (i)
the Company's business model for managing the related assets portfolio and (i) the cash
flow characteristics of the asset. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably
designate a debt financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at
amortized cost or at FVOCI at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

All other financial assets are classified ag measured at FVTPL

For assats measured at fair vaiue, gains and josses wili sither be recorded In profit or loss
or OCI.

Financial assets - Recognition and derecognition

Al purchases and sales of financlal assets that require delivery within the time frame
established by regulation or market convention (“regular way” purchases and sales) are
recorded at trade date, which is the date when the Company commits to defiver a financial
instrument. All other purchases and sales are recognized when the entity becomes a party
fo the contractual provisions of the ingtrument.

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial
assets have expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Financlal assets « Measurement

At initial recagnition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the
case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction costs
that are direclly atiributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaclion costs of
financial assets carried at FVTPL are expensed in profit or loss. Fair value at initial
recognition is best evidenced by the transaction price. A gain or loss on initial recognition
is anly recorded if there is a difference between fair value and transaction price which can
be evidenced by other ohservable current market transactions in the same instrument or
by a valuation technique whose inputs include only data from cbservable markets.
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

Financial assets - Measurement (continued)

Debt instrumenis

Subsaquent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company's business
model for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the assef. There are
three measurement categories into which the Company diassifies its debt instruments:

" Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured
at amortised cost, Interest income from these financial assets is included in ‘other
income’. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised directly in profit or
loss and presented in other gains/(losses) together with foreign exchange gains
and losses. Impairment losses are presented as separate line item in the income
statement. Financial assets measured at amartised cost (AC) comprise: cash and
cash equivalents, bank deposits with original maturity over 3 months and trade
reseivables.

» EVOCH: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for sefiing
the financial assets, where the assets' cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest, are measured at FVOC!. Movements in the carrying amount
are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impalrment gains or losses,
interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in
profit or loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and
recognised In other gains/(losses). Interest income from these financial assets is
included in other Income. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in
other gains/(losses) and impairment expensee are presented as saparate line item
in the income siatement

. FVTPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost ot FVOCI are
measured at FVTPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently
measured at FVTPL is recognised in profit or loss and presented net within other
gains/(losses) In the perlod in which it arises.

Financial assets — impairment ~ credit loss allowance for ECL

From 1 January 2018, the Company assesses on a forward-laoking basis the ECL for debt
instruments (including loans) measured at AC and FVOC] with the expasure arising from
loan commitments and financial guaraniee contracts. The Company measures ECL and
recognises credit loss allowance at each reporting date. The measurement of ECL
reflects: (i) an unbiased and probability weighted amount that is determined by evaluating
a range of possible outcomes, (i) time value of money and (jif) all reasonable and
supportable information that is available without undue cost and effort at the end of each
reporling period about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future conditions,

Thae carrying amount of the financial assets is reduced through the use of an allowance
account, and the amount of the loss is recognised in the income statement within ‘net
impalrment losses on financial and contract assels’.
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

Financial assetfs — impalrment — credit [oss allowance for ECL (continued)

Debt instruments measured at AC are presenied in the balance sheet net of the allowance
for ECL.

For debt instruments al FVOCI, an allowance for ECL is recognised In profit or loss and it
affects fair value gains or losses recognised in OCI rather than the carrying amount of

thosa instruments.

Expected losses are recognized and measured according to one of two approaches:
general approach or simplified approach.

For trade racsivables including frade receivables with a significant financing component
and contract assets and lease receivables the Company applies the simplified approach
permitted by IFRS 9, which uses lifefime expected losses to be recognised from [nitial

recognition of the financial assets.

For all other financial asset that are subject to impairment under IFRS &, the Company
applies general approach - three stage model for impairment. The Company applies a
three stage model for impairment, based on changes in credit quality since initial
recognition. A financial instrument that is not creditimpaired on initial recognition is
classified in Stage 1. Financial assets in Stage 1 have thelr ECL measurad at an amount
equal to the portion of lifetime ECL that results from default events possible within the next
12 months or until contractual maturity, if sharter {“12 Months ECL"). If the Company
identifies a significant increase in credit risk (“SICR") since initial recognition, the asset is
transferred to Stage 2 and its ECL is measured based on ECL on a lifetime basis, that is,
up until contractual maturity but considering expected prepayments, if any (“Lifetime
ECL"). Refer io Mote 6, Credit risk section for a description of how the Company
determines when a SICR has occurred, If the Company determines that a financial asset
Is credit-impaired, the asset is transferred to Stage 3 and lts ECL Is measured as
Lifetime ECL. The Company definition of credit impaired assets and definition of default is

explained in Note 6, Credit risk section.

Financial assets - Reclassification

Financial insiruments are reclassified only when the business medel for managing thosa
assets changes. The reclassification has a prospective effect and takes place from the
start of the first reporting period following the change.

Financlal assets — write-off

Financial assets are written-off, in whole or in part, when the Company exhausted all
practical recovery efforts and has concluded that there is no reasonable expectation of
recovery. The write-off represents & derecognition event. The Company may write-off
financial assets that are still subject to enforcement activity when the Company seeks to
recover amounts that are contractually due, however, there is no reasonahle expectation

of recovety.

(24)




The Mall of Engomi (ME) Plc

4 Summary of srignificant accounting policies (continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

In the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits
held at call with banks with original maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and bank overdrafts, Cash and cash equivalents are carried at AC
because: (i) they are held for collaction of contractual cash flows and those cash flows
represent SPPI, and (ii) they are not designated at FVTPL.

Financial assets at amortised cost

These amounts generally arise from transactions outside the usual operating activities of
the Company. These are held with the abjective to collect their contraciual cash flows and
their cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest. Accordingly, these are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment. Financlal assets at amortised cost are classified as current assets if thoy are
due within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If
not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Interest income

Interest income from financial assets at FYTPL Is included in the other gains/(losses) - net
on these assats. Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost and financial assets
at FYOCI calculated using the effective interest method is recognised in the income
statement as "Other income”, Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate fo the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except for financial assets
that subsequently become credit impaired. For credit - impaired financial assets — Stage 3
the effective interest rate Is applied to the net carrying amount of the financial asset (after
deduction of the loss allowancs), for Stage 1 and Stage 2 — gross amotint of financial
asssis.

Financial liabliities — measurement categories

Financial liabilitles are initially recognised at fair value and classified as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, except for (i) financial liabilities at FVTPL: this classification
is applied to derivatives, financial liabilities held for trading (e.g. short positions in
securities), contingent conslderation recognised by an acquirer in a business combination
and other financial liabifities designated as such at initial recognition and (ii) financial
guarantee contracts and loan commitments.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs Incurred.
Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds {net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in profit or loss
over the period of the borrowings, using the effective interest method, unless they are
directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset, In
which case they are capitallsed as part of the cost of that asset, Borrowings are classifiad
as current liabilities, unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of

the liabllity for at least twelve months after the batance sheet date.
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4 Summary of significant acecounting policies {continued)

Borrowings (continued)

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as fransaction costs of the
loan o the extent that It is probable that some or &ll of the facility will be drawn down. In
this cass, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is
capitalised as a prepayment (for liquidify servicas) and amortised over the period of the

facility to which it relates.

Bormrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the
contract is extinguished (i.e. when the cbligation specified in the contraci is discharged,
cancellsd or expires). The difference betwesn the carrying amount of a financlal liabllity
that has been extinguished or transferred to another parly and the consideration paid,
including any non-cash assets fransferred or liabllities assumed, is recognisad in profit or
loss as other income o finance costs.

An exchange between the Company and is original lenders of debt instruments with
substantially different terms, as well as substantial modifications of the ferms and
conditions of existing financial izbllities, are accounted for as an extinguishment of the
original financial liability and the recognition of a new financlal fiability. The terms are
substantially different if the discounted present value of the cash flows under the new
terms, including any fees paid net of any fees received and discounted using the original
effective interest rate, is at least 10% different from the discounted present value of the
remaining cash flows of the original financial liability.

if an exchange of debt insfruments or modification of terms is accounted for as an
extinguishment, any costs or fees incurred are recognised as part of the gain or loss on
the extinguishment. If the exchange or madification is not accounted for as an
extingulshment, any costs or faes incurred adjust the carrylng amount of the liability and
are amortised over the remalning term of the modified liabllity.

Modifications of liabilities that do not result in extinguishment are accounted foras a
change in estimata using a cumulative catch up method, with any gain or loss recognised
in profit or loss, unless the economic substance of the difference in carrying values is
attributed to a capifal transaction with owners and is recognised directly to equity.

Borrowing costs are Interest and other costs that the Company Incurs in connection with
the barrowing of funds, Including Inferest oh borrowings, amortisation of discounts or
premium relating to borrowings, amortisation of ancillary costs incurred in connection with
the arrangement of borrowings, finance leasa charges and exchange differences arising
from foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjusiment to

interest costs.

Borrowing costs that are directly atfributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of a qualifying asset, being an asset that necessatily takes a substantial period of ime to
gst ready for its intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset,
when it Is probable that they will result in futiire economic benefits to the Company and

the costs can be measurad reliably.

(29)




The Mall of Engomi (ME) Plc

4 Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount ls reported in the balance
sheet when there Is a legally enforceable right to set off the recegnised amounts and there
is an intantion to settle on a het basls or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future evenis and
must be enforceable In the normal course of business and in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

Share capital and share premium

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable o the issue of new shares are shown inequityasa
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present Jegal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outfiow of resources will be
required to seifle the obligation, and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions
are not recognised for future operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expendltures expectad to be required
ta settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the ebligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Segmental Analysls

The Company believes that there are no separate operating segments under IFRS8
'Operating Segments' for which there is a discrete financlal information for making
decisions on allocating resources and svaluating their performance. The Management of
the Company (Board of Directors) (upper body for making operational decisions) take
decisions for resource allocation and assessing their performance based on internal
reports at Company level. These reports are consisent with IFRS which were used for the
preparation of the financial statements. There is no additional Information on the
performance of individual segments.

Deferred income
Deferred income represents payments made by the various tenants for additional

canstruction work and alterations made to tha leased premisas and which are recognised
In the comprehensive income during the lease term.
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

Comparatives

Due to the change of financial year end from 30 June to 31 December, the Company's
comparative financlal information presented in these financial statements cover the 6
manth perfod from 1 July 2017 to 31 December 2017, whereas the curent period financial
information preserted cover the yeer from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018. The
reason for the change is the fact that the Company's shareholders’ financial year end is 31
December. Therefore, the numbers related o the results and cash flows of the
comparative period (6 months) as presented in these financial statemants are not
comparable to the current year's figures (12 months).

5 New accounting pronouncements

At the date of approval of these financial statements a number of hew standards and
amendments to standards and interprefations are effective for annual periods beginning
afler 1 January 2018, and have not been applied In preparing these financial statemants.
None of thesa is expected to have a significant effect on the financial statemants of the

Company.

. IFRS 16 'Leases’ (issued on 13 January 2016 and effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2019). The new standard sets out the principles for
the recognition, measurement, presentation and digclosure of leases. All leases
result in the lessee obtaining the right fo use an asset at the start of the lease and,
If lease payments are made over fime, also obtalning financing. Accordingly, IFRS
18 eliminates the classification of inases as either operating laases or finance
leases as is required by IAS 17 and, instead, introduces a single lessee accounting
model. Lessees will ba required to recognise: (a) assets and liabilities for all leases
with a term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset Is of low value;
and (b) depreciation of lease assets separately from inferest on lease liabilities in
the Income statement. IFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements In |AS 17. Accordingly, a lessor continues to classlfy its leases as
operating leases or finance leases, and to account for those two types of leases
differently. The Company is currently assessing the impact of the new standard on
Its financial statements and as of the dale of issue of these financiai statemenis
the impact of the adoption of this standard is not known / or reasonable estimable.
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tH

New accounting pronouncements

Amendments 1o IFRS 9: Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation
(issued on 12 Qctober 2017 and effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018). For financial instruments which contain a prepayment amount
that may resuli in negative compensation, the Amendments propose that such a
financial asset would be eligible to be measured at amortised cost of at fair value
through other comprehensive income, subject to the assessment of the business
model in which it is held. The Company is currently assessing the Impact of the
interpretation on its financial statements and as of the date of issue of these
financial statements the impact of the Interpratation is not known/ or reasonable
gstimabla.

Amendments to IAS 1 and 1AS 8: Definition of materiality (issued on 31 October
2018 and effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 20240). The
amendments clarify the definition of material and how it should be applied by
including in the definition guidance that uniil now has featured elsewhere in IFRS.
in addition, the explanations accompanying the definition have been improved.
Finally, the amendments ensure that the definition of material is consistent across
all IFRS Standards. Information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it
could reasonably be expected to influence the decisions that the primary users of
general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statemnents, which provide financiat information about a specific reporting entity.
The Company is currently assassing the impact of the amendments on its financial
statements and as of the date of issue of these financial statements the impact of
the amendments is hot known/ or reasonable estimable.

Finangcial risk management

Financial risk factors

The Company's activities expose it to a varlety of financial risks: market risk
(including fair value interast rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk.

The Company's risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the
Company's financial performance. Risk management Is carried out by
Management under policies approved by the Board of Directors. Management
identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks in close co-operation with the
Company's operaiing units. The Board provides written and / or oral principles for
overall risk management, as well as written policies and / or oral covering specific
areas, such as interest rate risk, credit risk, and investment of excess liquidity.
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6 Financial risk management (continued)

[(}] Financial risk factors {continued)
] Market risk

Cash flow and fair vafue interest rate risk

As the Company has no significant interest-bearing assets, the Company's income and
operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes In market interest rates.

The Company's interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings. Borrowings issued at
variable rates expose the Company fo cash flow interest rate risk.

At 31 December 2018, if Interest rates on Eurc-denominated borrowings had been 0,5%
{2017: 0,5%) higherflowar wiih ali other variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been €82.447 (2017 €49.349) lowerthigher, mainly as a result of higher/lower
inferest expense on floating rate borrowings.

The Company's management monitors the interest rate fluctuations on a continuous basis
and acts accordingly.

. Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, deposits with banks and financial
instifutions, as well as credit exposures to tenants, including outstanding lease

receivables.
(i) Risk management

Credit risk ig managed on a group basis. For banks and financlal institutions, only those
that are highly rated by the Board of Directors are accepted. Management assesses the
credit quality of the users of space, taking into account its financial position, past

experience and other factors.
(i) Impairment of financial assets

The Company has three types of financial assets that are subject to the axpscted credit
loss model;

. trade receivables for the grant of use of space
. financial assets at amorlised cost {lbans to related parties)
® cash and cash equivalents '

Trade and lease recelvables

The Company applies the IFRS 8 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses
which uses a lifetima expected loss allowance for ali frade receivables.

To measture the expected credit losses, trade and lease receivables have been grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due. The Company defines
default as a situation when the debtor is more than 90 days past due on its contractual

payments.
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6 Financial risk management (continued)

(1)) Financial risk factors {continued)

. Credit risk (continued)

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of sales aver a period of 12
months before 31 December 2018 or 1 January 2018 respectively and the corresponding
historical credit losses experienced within this period. The historical loss rates are
adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking information on macroeconomic factors
affecting the ability of the customers to settle the recelvables. The Company concluded
that an adjustment of historical default rates is not required as it is immaterial.

Trade receivables sre writien off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.
Indicators that there is no reasonable expectation of recovery include, amongst athers, the
failure of a debtor to engage In a repayment plan with the Company, and a failure to make
contractual payments for a period of greater than 120 days past due.

Impairment losses on ade and lease recelvables are presented ae net impairment losses
within operating profit. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited against the same line item.

Pravious accounting policy for impairment of trade receivables

In the prior year, the impairment of trade and lease receivables was assessed based on
the incurred loss model. A provision for impairment of lease recaivables was established
when there was objective evidence that the Company will not be able to collect all
amounts due according to the original terms of recelvables. Significant financial difficulties
of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or delinquency in paymants
were considered indicators that the Jease receivable was impaired. The amount of the
provision was the difierence between the carrying amount and the recoverable amount,
being the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective Interest
rate.

The carrying amount of the asset was reduced through the use of an allowance account,
and the amount of the loss was recognised in profit or loss within ‘net impalrment losses
on financial and contract assets’ (2017: recognised within administrative expenses). When
a lease receivable was uncallectible, it was writien off against the allowance account for
trade recelvables. Subsequent recoverles of amounts previously written off were credited
in "other gains” in profit or loss.

Other financial assels at amortised cost
Other financial assets at amortised cost include loans ta related parties.
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6 Financial risk management {continued)

{i) Financial risk factors {continued)

) Credit risk {continued)

e mrties coct erd FVOCI - gareral expected aroalt foss model 8ol

The Company considers the probability of default upon Initial racognition of asset and
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis
throughout each reporting period. To assess whether thare is a significant increase in
credit risk the company compares the risk of a default occurring on the asset as at the
reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition. It considers
available reasonable and suppartive forwarding-looking information. Especially the
following indicators are Incorporated:

. Intarnal credit rating
. external credit rating (as far as available)

. actual or expacted significant adverse changes in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause a significant change to the borrower’s ability

to meet its obligations
. actual or expecled significant changes in the operating results of the

borrower/fcounter parly

. significant increases in cradit risk on other financial insruments of the same
borrowsr/counterparty

© significant changes in the value of the collateral supporting the obligation or In the

quality of third-party guarantees or credit enhancements

. signlificant changes in the expedted performance and behaviour of the
borrawer/counterparty, including changes in the payment status of counterparty In
the group and changes In the operating resuits of the borrower.

Regardless of the analysis above, a significant increase in credit risk Is presumed if a
debtor is more than 30 days past due in making a contractual payment,

A default on a financial asset is when the counterparty fails to make contractual payments
within 120 days of when they fall due.

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable sxpectation of recovery, such
as a debtor failing to engage in a repayment plan with the company. The Company
categorises a loan or raceivable for write off when a debtor fails to make contractual
payments greater than 180 days past due. Whete loans or receivables have been written
off, the Company continues to engage in enforcement activity to attempt to recover the
receivable due. Where recoveries are made, these are recognised in profit or loss.

The Company uses three categories for loans, receivables, other receivables debt
securities at FVOCI which reflect their credit risk and how the loss provision is detarmined
for each of those categories. These intemnal credit risk ratings are aligned to external
credit rating companies, such as Standard and Poor, Moody's and Fitch.
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6

{1

Financial rigk factors {continued)

Financial risk management {(continued)

. Credlt risk (continued)

A summary of the assumptions underpinning the Company's expected credit loss model is

as follows:

Category Company definition of|Basis for recognition Basls for calculation
category of expected credit of Interest revenue

loss provision

Performing Counterparties have a [Stage 1: 12 month Gross carrying
low risk of default and a|expected losses. amount
strong capacity to mest {Where the expected
contractual cash flows hifetima of an asset Is

less than 12 months,
expected losses are
measured at its
expected lifetime.

{Underperforming  [Counterpariies for Stage 2: Lifetime Gross carrying
which there is a axpected losses amount
significant increase in
credit risk; as
significant increase in
credit risk is presumad
if intarest and/for
principal repayments
are 30 days past due
(see ahove in more
detail)

{Non-performing Interest and/or principal |Stage 3: Lifetime Amortised cost
repayments are 90 expected losses casrying amouni (net
days past due of credit aliowance)

Write-off Interest and/or principal |Asset is written off None
repayments are 180
days past due and
there is no reasonable
expectation of
recovety.

interest bearing loans are provided to related parties, The Gompany does not require the
related parties to pledge coliateral as security against the loans.

Over the term of the loans, receivables and other receivables and debt securities the
Company accounts for its credit risk by appropriately providing for expected credit losses
n calculating the expected credit loss rates, The Company considers

on a timely basis. |

historical loss rates for each category

macroeconomic data,
No significant changes to estimation techniques or assumptions were made during the

reporting period.

of customers, and adjusts for forward locking
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6 Financia! risk management (continued)

{i) Financial risk factors {continued)

. Cradit risk (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are subject to the impairment requirements of IFRS 8, the
identified impairment loss was immaterial. No cash and cash equivalents were written off

during the year.
Loan to related parties

Loan to related parties are subject to the impairment requirements of IFRS 9, the
identified impalrment loss wag immaterial. No foan to related partles were written off

during the year,
Trade receivables

Trade receivables are subject to the impairment requirements of IFRS 9, the identified
impairment loss was immaterial. No trade receivables were written off during the year.

Net impalrment losses on financial assets recognlized In profit or loss

During the year, no gains/{losses) were recognised in profit or loss in relation to impaired
financial assets.

Credit quality of financlal assets af 31 December 2017

The credit quality of financials assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be
assessad by reference to external credit ratings {if applicable) or to histotical information
about counterparty defauit rates:

H
Decamber
2017
€
Counterpariies without external credit rating
Growp 1 51.564
TOTAL —p 11504
Fully performing other recelvables
Group 2 430.073
Group 3 1.114.303
TOTAL 1.553,378
Cash and bank balances
Caal 1,078,343
TOTAL 172,243

Group 1 - existing tenants {more than 6 months) with no defaulfs in the past.

Group 2 - Other receivables

Group 3 — companies within the group, parent entily, common control companies and
associates with no defaults in the past.

None of the loans and receivables from related parties is past due or impalred.
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6 Financial risk management (continued)

{i) Financlal risk factors (continued)

. Liquidity risk

The table below analyses the Company's financial liabilities into ralavant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period at the balance sheet to the contractual maturity
date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows,
Balances due within 12 months (with the exception of borrowings) equal their carrying
balances as the impact of discounting is not significant,

Less Between Betwean
than1 1and2 2108 Over §

€ €
At 31 December 2017
Botrowings 1732.000 1.056.000 5.868.000 15.808.213
Trade and other payailes 448.785 - _ -

2180785 1,855,000 5,860,000 _15,600.213

Less Between Bestweon

than1 1and 2 2106 Qvet B
yoaar yoars years yoars
€ € € €

At 31 Decembor 2018
Borowings 4,956,000 1.856.000 §888.000 13.238.108
Trade and other payables 4 - -

284,874 =
2220874 1,956.000 5338000 13,238,108
. Financial instruments by category as at 31 December 2017:

Loang and
raceivables
€
31 Dacember 2017

Other recelvables 400,637
Cash and bank balances 078,343
Total e ls500,880
Liabllties at
amorilsed
€

Trade and ofher payables {sxcluding statutory
Tahllitas) 1,138.741
Bomouings —19.73,461
Tﬂtﬁl M

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company's liquidity reserve
{comprises undrawn borrowing facifity (Note 20) and cash and cash

equivalents (Note 18)) on the basis of expected cash flow. Based on their
experience, the management considers that the bank overdraft will continue to be
renewed normally on an annual basis.
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6 Financial risk management (continued)

(iiy Capital risk management
The Company’s abjectives when managing capital are fo safeguard the Company's
ability to continue as a going concem n order to provide retumns for shareholders
and beneflts for other stakeholders and fo maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the
amount of dividends paid to shareholders, retumn capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sefl assets 1o reduce debt.

The Company monitors capital on the bases of the gearing ratio, This ratio is
calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debi is calculated as total
borrowings (including ‘current and non-curraht borrowings' ag shown in the balance
sheet) less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated using ‘equity’ as
shown in the balance sheet plus net debt.

The gearing ratios at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017 were as follows:

3 31

Dacember December

2018 2017

€ €

Total borrowings (Note 20) 18.845.080 19.739.461
Less: cash and cash equivalents {Note 18) _{1.303.308) 1.079.343)
Net debt 17.541.780 18.660.118
Total equity 20.588.101 17.725.290
Total capital as defined by managemant 28,130.881 38385408
Gearing ratlo 48% 51%

{lll} Fair value estimation

The carrying value less impairment provision of trade receivables and payables are
assumed to approximate their fair values. The fair value of financial liabilities for
disclosure purposes Is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows
at the current market interest rate that is available for similar financial instruments.
Refer to Nota 16 for disclosure of fair value for Investment Properties carried at falr
value.
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7 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which,
by definition, will seldomn equal the actual resuits. Management also needs to exercise
judgement in applying the company’s accounting policies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances.

)] Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The
resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual
results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year ara discussed below.

s Impalrment of financlal assets

The loss allawances for financial assets are based on assumptions about
risk of default and expected loss rates, The Company uses judgement in
making these assumptions and selecting the Inputs to the impalrment
caleulation, based on the company’s past history, existing market conditions
as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.
Details of the key assumptions and inputs used are digclosed in the Note &
Credit risk section.

. Income taxes

Significant judgment is required in determining the provision for income
taxes. There are transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain. The Company recognises liabliities for
anticipated iax audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes
will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such differances will impact the
current and deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the period In which
such determination is made.

. Eair value of Investment property

The falr value of investment property is determined using valuation

techniques which entail a significant degree of judgement and uncertainty.
Refer to Note 16 for the relevant disclosure of valuation technique used for
the determination of the fair value of the Company's investment properties.

. Related party fransactions

In the normal course of business the Company enters into fransactions with
its related parties. Judgement is applied in determining if transactions are
priced at market or non-market rates, where there is no active market for
such transactions.

@37)




The Mall of Engomi (ME) Plc

8 Rights for use of space and other revenue

Rights for use of space
Lease income

Total revenue from contracts with customers

9 Other iIncome

interes! income;
Finenclal essets at amortised costs:
Bank balances
Loans {o related parties {Mote 25(iv))
Tatal interast Income calculated using effective interest rate method for

financial assets at amortised cost

Other aperafing income

10  Other gains - net

Investment property:
Fair value gain {Note 16)

Total other galns - net

For the

periad from

Year ended 1 July 2017
S | to 31
December Decembar
2018 2017

€ €

3.241.690 1.613.548
22,733 13,747
3,264.423 1|27!295
Fer the

periad from

Year endad 1 July 2047
ky ] fo 31
December December
2018 2017

€ €

17 189

48,008 27,688
48.026 27.877
42.714 213587
—d) 48234
For the

period from

Year ended 1 July 2017
Fi | to 31
Dscember Decembear
2018 2017

€ €

986.000 -
985.00_9_ -
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11  Expenses by nature

Depreclation (Note 15)
Insurance

Auditors' remunetation

Diher expenses

Menegement fees

Diractors' fees

Bank charges

Legal feas

Cyprus stock exchange axpenses
Professional feea

Bad debts written off

Other common areas expenses

Total administrative expenses

Year
anded 31
December
2018

€

4,256
826
9.000
1.338
67.084
2,500
1,101
10637
8.988
100.298
11,
217,

For the
period from
1 July 2017

to 31
Decemnber
2017

€

2.958
1.367
£.000
366
34.068
1.280
514
3.1a8
2.250
42.899
27.065

123,743

The total fees charged by the Company's statutory auditor for the statutory audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2018 amounted to
€9.,000 (six months period ended 31 December 2017 €8.000). The total fees charged by
the Company's statutory auditor for the period ended 31 December 2018 for tax advisory
services amaunted to €1.350 (six manths period ended 31 December 2017: €6.100) and
for ather assurance services €3.794 (six months period ended 31 December 2017: €ni).

12 Finance costs

Interest and finance charges paid/payable for financial liabilities nat at fair

value through profit or loss:
Bank borrowings and overdrafts
Othar interest expense

Total interest expanse

For the

peniod from

Year ended 1 July 2017
M to 31
Dacember December
2018 2017

€ €

841.747 445.150

- 106

841,747 446,256
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13  Income tax expense

Year endad
5|
Decembar
2018
€
Current tax:

Corporation tax 187.692

Defenca oontribution 1.248

Underprovision/(Overprovision) of prior years' faxes:

Prior year tax 21,563
Tolal current tax 210,403
Deferrad tax (Nate 21):

Origination and reversal of temporary differences 7.7
Total deferred tax —207.733
Income tax expense 4184

For the
period fram
1 July 2017

to 31
Decamber
2017

€

91.779
1.238

63.111

102,974

The tax on the Company's profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would

arise using the applicable tax rate as follows:

Year ended
7 |
December
2018
€
Profit hefors tax a281.847
Tax caloulated at the applicable corparation tax rate of 12,6% 410.243
Tax effoct of expenses not deduciible for tax purpases 1.232
bifference between capltal gains tax rate and Income tax rate and effect of
Iinflation {16.160)
Special cantribution for defence 1.248
Prior year tax —21,663
Income tax charge —T118.138

The Company Is subject to income tax on taxable profits at the rate 12,5%,
As from tax year 2012 brought forward losses of only five years may be utilised.

For the
perlod from
1 July 2017

to 31
December
2017

€

L106.530
138.316
3.678

12.896
1.238

{53,154)
102.974

From 1 January 2009 onwards, under certain conditions, interest may be exempt from
income tax and be subject only to spaclal contribution for defence at the rate of 10%;

increased to 15% as from 31 August 2011, and to 30% as from 29 April 2013,
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14  Earnings per share

The basic and fully diiuted eamings per share are calculated by dividing the profit/{loss)
attributable to the Company's shareholders by the weighted average number of issued

shares during the year,

Profit for the year atiributable o shareholders
Weighted average number of issued shares (Note 19)

Basic and diluted earnings per share - cents

15  Plant and equipment

At1 July 2017
Coat
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount
Perlod end 31 Decamber 2017

Opening net book amotnt
Depradafion charge (Note 11)

Cloaing net book amaunt

Al 31 December 2047} 1 January 2018
Cosl
Accunuilated depreciation

Net book amount

Year andad 31 December 2018
Opening nat book amount
Dapredlalion charge (Nole 11)

Closkg net book amaunt
At 39 Dacambar 2018
Cost

Accumutated dapreclafion

Net book amount

For the
petiod from
Year ended 1 July 2017
k7 to 31
Decembeor December
2018 2017
€ €
2863811 1003556
10.000. .10.000.000
—884 1004
Computar Plant and
Hardware Machinery Skyns Totat
€ € € €
1.045 76.821 88.371 168.237
{1,045) {64.791) (87.797) ___{153.833)
- 12,630 §74 12.604
- 12.030 574 12.804
- (2.529) (428) {2.858)
- 8,501 145 9.648
1.045 76.821 88.371 168.237
—(1048) ___ (67.220) _ (88.226)

- 9.50% 146 9648

. 9,601 145 9,646
= (8111 {145 (4.268)
= 6380 = £300
1.045 76.821 88371 166287
(1.045) (71430 ___(88.371) __{160847)
- 3,300 - 5300
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16 Investment property

For the

period from

1 July 2017

kL | to 31

December Decamber

2018 2017

€ €

Al beginning of year/period 38.290.000 38.200.000
Fair value gain {Note 10) £85.000 -
Atend of year/period J8:276.000 38,290,000

The investment properties are generally valued annually at fair value comprising open-
market value based on valuations, by an independent, professionally qualified valuer. Fair
value Is based In aclive market process, adjusted, if necessary, for any differences in the
nature, location or condition of the specific asset. If the information is not available, the
Company uses altemative valuation methods such as recent prices or less active markets
or discounted cash flow projections. These valuations are prepared annually by
independent valuers and reviewed and adopted by management. Changes in fair value
are recorded in profit or loss and are included in "other gains-net”.

The Company's investment property is measured at fair value. Changes in fair values are
presented fn profit or joss.The Company holds one clase of investment property being the
Mall of Engomi.

The following table analyses Investment property carried at fair value, by valuation
method.The different levels have been defined as follows:

- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Leval
).
@ Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the

asset or liability, elther directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from
prices) (Level 2).

. Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on cbservable market data (that
is, unobservable inputs) (Level 3).

The Company has classlfied its Investment property in Level 3 of the hierarchy.

3 3

Engoml December Dacember

Shopping 2018 2017

Kall Total Total

€ € L1

Openlng Fair Value 38280000 38,290.000 38.280.000
Galn from falr value adjustments on

lavasimant property — 506,000 985,680 -

Market value er external valustion report 38275000 _30,375.000 38,260,000
_m 3953 Z&ﬂﬂﬂ M&Dﬂﬂ

Bank borrowings are secured on the Company's investment property for €24.711.817 (six
months pericd ended 31 December 2017: €24.711.817) (Note20),

Fair value at 31 Decemhar
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16  Investment property (continued)

Valuation processes

The Company's investment properiies were valued by management as at 31 December
2018. As part of the process, the management took Into account extemal valuation
prepered as at 31 December 2018 by indepenent professionally qualified valuers
Landtourist Valuations LLC, who hold a recognised relevant professional qualification and
have recent experience in the locations and segments of the investment properties valued.
For all investment properties, thelr current use equates to the highest and best use. The
Company's finance depariment reviews the valuations petformed by the independent
valuers for financial reporting purposes. Discussions of valuation processes and results
ara held between the GFO, Management, and the independent vaiuers at least once every
year. At each financial year end the finance department:

. verifies all major inputs fo the independent valuation report

° assesses property valuation movements when compared to the prior year valuation
report; and

. holds discussions with the independent valuer.

Management has considered the key assumptions and they have concluded in a fair
value gain of the Investment property value of €985.000.

Information about fair value measurement using significant
unobasrvable Inputs {Level 3} - 31 December 2018

Yaluation Terminal Rental
Country Valuatlon technique  Discountrate capltalisation rate Revenue Growth
€ h % € %
Income:
approach -
Discounted
Cyprnus 39,275,000 cash flows 10,26 8,25 3.262.67¢ 1

[aformation about falr value measuremant using significant
unobservable Inputs (Level 3} - 31 December 2017

Valuation Terminal Rental
Gountry Valuation technique  Discountrate capltalisetion rate Revenue Growth
€ % % € %
Income
approach -
Discounted
Cyprus 38.290.000 cash flows 10,50 8,50 3.131.605 1
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16  Investment property (continued)

fansitivity of managamsnt's astimates -~ 31 Dacember 2018

Change In diacount rate
0,50% 0,00% 0,50%
0,50% 39479412 20.403.144 39.327.077

GChange in terminal
Cyprus cap rate 0,00% 39351370 39.275.000 39,199.630
0,60% 35,223,767 30.148.003 30,072,818

chanue fn discount rate
-0,80% 0,00% 0,50%
~10,00%  35.530.804 35.462.420 35.304.654
Cyprus Change in rent 0,00%  30.351.370 30.275.000 89,709,830
10,00% 431471516 43.087.051 43.004.807

Sensitivity of management’s estimates — 31 Dacembrer 2017

Change {n discount rate
-0,60% 0,00% 0,860%
«0,50%  38.488.622 38.413.006 38.337.501
Changie In terminal

Cyprus cap rate 0,00% 38365324 38.200.000 38.214.879
0,50%  38.242.419 28.167.388 33.092.656

Change In discount rate
-0,60% 0,00% 0,50%
«10,00% 94,837,201 94,769,434 34.701.431

Cyprus Changa In cap rata 0,00%  38.385,324 35290000 38.214.879
10,00%  41.893.028 41.810.8587 41.720.558

A change in vacancy rate by 5%, i.e. the accupled spaces will be at 95%, will lead to a
decrease of the fair value from the base scenario by €2.867.853, ie leading {o a fair value
of €36.407.147 at 31 December 2018.

Revenues are derived from a small number of tenants and 2 single tenants or group under
commeon contrel contributes more than 80% of the Company's revanues,

There are inter-relationships between unobservable inputs. Increase/Deacrease in the
rental income per square meter results in higherdower fair value. Increase/decrease in
rental yield results in lower/higher fair value. For investment property under construction,
increasss in construction costs that enhance the property's features may result in an
increase In future rental values. An increase In the future rental income may be linked with
higher costs. If the remalning lease term increases the vield may decrease,

Valuation techniques underlying management's estimation of falr value

The valuation was determined using discounted cash flow prajections based on significant
unobservable inputs. These inputs include:

Future rental cash inflows  based on the actual locatton, type and quality of the
properties and supported by the terms of any existing lease,
other contracts or external evidence such as current market
rents for similar propertles;
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16 Investment property {(continued)

Discount rates reflacting current market assessments of the uncertainty in

the amount and timing of cash flows;

Estimated vacancy rates based on current and expected future market conditions

after expiry of any current lease;

Maintenance costs including necessary investments to maintain functionality of

the property for its expected useful life;

Capitalisation rates based on actual location; size and quality of the properties
and taking into account market data at the valuation date;

Terminal value taking into account assumptions regarding maintenance

costs, vacancy rates and market rents.

For Cyprus land and buildings with a total carrying amount of €39.275.000, the valuation
was determined using discounted cash flow projections. Properties valued using the
discounted cash flows mode! iake into account future rental values,vacant spaces and
maintenance costs discounted to the present value using an estimated discount rate.
These values are adjusted for differences in the market conditions such as demand and
finance affecting market sales. The most significant input into this valuation approach is

license faes and discount rates,

17 Financial assets

(a) Trade receivables

Year ended
A
December
2018

€

Trade recelvables 300,066
Trade recelvables — net 300.866

(i) Fair value of trade raceivables

Due o the short-term nature of the current receivables, their carrying amount Is
considered to be the same as their fair value.

(i Impairment and risk exposure

For the
perlod from
1 July 2017

to 21
January
2017

€

51,584

information about the current year impairment of lease receivables and the company's

exposure to credit risk can be found in note 8.
Prior year impairment of trade raceivables:
As of 31 December 2017, lease receivables of €61.564 were fully performing.
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17  Financial assets {continued)

Trade receivables that are less than four months past due are not considered impaired. As
of 31 December 2017, no trade receivables were past due or impaired.
Forthe
period from
1 July 2017
to 31

January
2017

Up to 1 month 2,681

1 to 4 months 4B 883
51,564

As of 31 December 2017 no irade receivables ware impalred and provided for.

The carrying amounts of the Company's frade and other receivables are denominated in
the following currencies:

For the

period from

Year ended 1 .July 2017

3 to 31

Becemhbear January

208 2017

€ €

Eura - functional and presentation currency 200,968 __b51.664

M SM‘
(b) Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets at amortised cost inciude the foifowing debi investmenis:

For the
period from
Year endad 1 July 2017
M o
December December
2018 2017
L €

Current
Loan to related pariy 1.862.328 -
Total current 1,862,328 -
Less: Loss allowance for debt investments at amortised cost - -
Financial assets at amortised cost - net 882328  _ -

() Current financial assels at amoriised cost

Due to the short-term nature of the current receivables, ihelr carrying amount is
considered to be the same as thelr fair value.
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17  Financial assets (continued)

The carrying amounts of the Company's financial assets at amortised cost are
denominated in the following currencies:

For the

peried from

Yaar ended 1 July 2047

21 o 31

Dacember December

2018 2017

€ €

Euro - functional and presentation currency 1.862.329 n
1,882,329 -

(i) Impairment and risk exposure

Note 6 sets out information about the impairment of financial asssts and the company's
exposure to credlt risk.

18 Cash and cash equivalents

For the

period from

1 July 2017

M to 31

December December

2018 2017

€ €

Cash at bank and In hand 1.303.209 L079.343

Cash and cash equivalents include the following for the purposes of the statement of cash
flows:

Far the

perfod from

Year ended 1 July 2017

31 o3l

Decemhber December

2018 2017

€ €

Cash and bank balances wa:303.309 1,078,343
Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following currencies:

Euro - funclional and presentation cumency 1,303.309 1,079,343
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18 Cash and cash equivalents (continuaed)

Reconciliation of llabillties arising from financing activities:

Bank
Barrowings
€
Opening Balance 1 January 2018 19,739.461
Cagh flows:
Repaymsnt of principal (997.294)
Rapayment of Interest {738,825)
Interest expense 865.931
Non-cash changes:
Fair value galns/(lossee) (24 184)
Closing Balanca 31 Decamber 2018 aan 8:845.089
Bank
Barrowings
€
Opening Balance at 1 July 2017 20.101.365
Cash flows:
Repayment of principal (417.382)
Repayment of inferest (390.672)
Inlerest expense 446,150
Cloging Balance 31 December 2017 e 220,461
19  Share capital
Number of Share
sharas capital
€
30 June 2017 / 31 Decamber 2017 and 31 December
10900000 1,000,000

2018

Tha {otal authorized number of ordinary shares is 10.000.000 shares with a par value of
€0,10 per share, All issusd shares are fully paid.

20 Borrowings

a y|
Decemher December
2018 2017
€ €
Current
Bank borrowings 1.300.665 882.703
Non-current
Bank borrowings 17.644.424 18.856.758
Total borrowings J8.845088 19.739.481
Maturity of non-currant borrowings
Befween 1 and 2 years 1,348,138 1.152.400

Between 2 and § years 4.346.908 3.775.776
Over 5 years 11.849.376 13.928.682

17.544,424 18,856,758

Up until March 2018, the loan bore interest of the Business Bank Rate plus margin of
0,95% and was repayable by August 2030. Foliowing the modification of the loan in
March 2018, the loan bears interest of 3 month Eurlbor plus margin of 3,65%.
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20

Borrowings (continued}

The bank leans are secured as follows:

0
{n

(i)
V)
(v)

By floating charge of €23.000.000 on the assets of The Mall of Engomi (ME) Plc.

By 1st mortgage on the Company’s land and buildings {Note 16) for €22.211.817
{(2017: €22.211.817).

By 2nd mortgage on the Company's land and buildings (Note 16) for €2.500,00
(2017: €2.500.000).

By corporate guarantee by the Mall of Cyprus {MC) Plc for the amount of
€23.000.000 (Note 25 v).

By Corporate guarantee by Atterbury Cyprus Limited for the amount of
€23.200.000 (Note 25 v).

The weighted average effective Interest rates at the balance shest date were as follows:

For tha

period

fram 1

July 2017

H fo 31

December December

2018 2017

% %

Bank borrowings 4,38 4,52

The Company's bank borrowings are arranged at floaling rates. Borrowings at floating
rates the interest rate is subject to repricing exposing the Company to cash flow interest
rate risk.

The exposure of the Company's botrowings to interest rate changes and the contractual
repricing dates at the balanca sheet dates are as follaws:

k)

31

December Deacamber
2018 2017
€ €
& monthsa or less 18,846.089 18.739.451

The Company has the following undrawn borrowing facilitles:

¥

31

Decamber December

2018 20117
€ €
Floating rate:

Expiring within one year 1,600.000 1,000.000
The camying amounts of the Company's borrowings are denominated in the following
currencies:

] | 31

Decemher Decsmber

2018 2017

€ €

Euro - funclional and presentation currency 18.845,089 16.739.461
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21 Deferred income tax liabilities

The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is as follows:

At beginning of year/period
Charge included in profit or loss {Note 13)

At end of year/period

For the

period from

1 July 2017

| o 31
Decemhbsr December
2018 2017

€ €

2.263.928 2.200.887
— 207,733 63111
SZATATY 2263998

The movement In deferred tax assets and liabilities during the period, without taking Into
consideration the offseiting of balances within the same tax Jurisdiction, is as follows:

Daferred tax labllites

Differenca
hetween Fair value
depraciation and galns on
wearand fear  investment
allowance properties Total
€ [ €
At1 July 2017 10,200 1.200.678 2200887
Charged 1o:

Prafit or logs {Nota 13) 50.08 13013 63.111
At 1 January 2018 0880.307 1.303.691 2263908
Charged ta:

Profit or lass {Note 13) 00.758 106978 ____ 207.733
At 31 Decernber 2018 1.061065 1410868 2471731
22  Trade and other payables-non current

R | kY|

December Dacamber

018 2017

€ €

Operating jeasa advances 840.432 640432
Deferrad Income 116,762 158,478
757.194 799.008

The carrying amounts of the Company's trade and other payables are denominated in

Euro.
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23  Trade and other payables-current

31 3

December December

2018 2017

€ €

Other payables 250.084 439.865
Accnied expanses 14,780 8,800
Total finandial payables within trade and other puysbles at amorised cost 204874 __448.765
Deferred income 42,746 42715
Total other payables 42.7 42.718
Trade and other payables 307,589 491,480

The fair value of trade and other payables which are due within one year approximates
their carrying amount at the balance sheet date.

24 Commitments

License fee / Operating lease commitments ~ where the company Is the lessor
‘The Company's operating lease income is derived from income from rights for use of space.

The total amount of the minimum future license fees/ rentals receivahle in accordance with the
non-cancellable operating lease commitments are as follows:

31 31

December December

2018 2017

€ €

No later than 1 year 3,297.602 3.224.284
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years 2,362.378 12.301.413
Later than 5 years ___228.800 419.400

12,886.880 15,945,087

25 Related party transactions

As at the date of these financial statements the main shareholder of the Company is
Atterbury Cyprus Limited which owns 89,50% of the Company's sharea.

Atterbury Cyprus Limited is controlied by Atterbury Eurape BV, incorporated in
Netherlands which owns 97,50% in the company.

The ultimate controlling party of the company as at 31 December 201 8 Is Brightbridge
Investments Ltd {Cyprus) through its indirect 43,78% sharehalding in Atterbury Cyprus
Limited (the parent company).

The ultimate parent entity which prepares the consolidated financial statements of the
largest body of undertakings of which the Company forms parl as a subsidiary
undertaking, is Atterbury Europe Holding B.V. ,incorporated in Netherlands and its
consolidated financial statements are available at the following address 9 Schuttersveld
2316X@ Leiden, The Netherlands.
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25  Related party transactions (continued)

Atterbury Cyprus Limited, incorporated in Cyprus with registered office at Arch. Makariou
I, 185, Neacleous House, 3030 Limassol, Cyprus, is the parent entity which prepares the

consolidated financial statement of the smallest body of underfakings of which the

Company forms pari as a subsidiary undertaking.

()] Sales of goods and services

Sales of sarvices:

Financing and Interest:
The Mall of Cyprus (MC) Plc (Note &)

(i) Purchases of goods and services

Purchases of services:
Fliptype Holdings Limited
Aitarbury Europe Services B.V.
Atlerbury Cyprus Limited

{iiiy Directors’ remuneration
The total remuneration of the Directors was as follows:

Fees

For the

period from

Year ended 1 July 2017
4| to 31
DPecamber Dacember
2018 2017

€ €

49.008 27,688

For the

period from

Year ended 1 July 2017
E1 | fod
December December
2018 2017

€ €

48.038 24 581
144.098 73.7H1

— 7398 ___28.509
25328 124921
Fer the

period from

Year ended 1 July 2017
ki | ta 31
December December
2018 2017

€ €

2,500 1.250
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25  Related party transactions (continued)

(iv) Borrowings to related parties

For the

period from

1 July 2017

31 to 31

December December

2018 2017

€ €

Leoans to related party:

At beginning of yearfperiod 4,114.303 -

Borrowings advanced during the year/perlod 1.159.000 489.711
Reclassification fram other recelvablas - 1.180.208
Interest charged (Note ) 49,005 27.688
Borrowings repaid {500.000) {500.000)
Borrowings assigned from#{to) related company 40.017 (B3,304)
Atend of yearfperiod 1862323 1114303

The above amount receivable from the related company, The Mall of Cyprus (MC)
Plc, bears interest equal to 3 month Euribor plus margin of 3,65% and a 20%
matk-up 1.8, 4,40%, (2017: 4,39%) and is repayable on demand.

(v) Guarantees

The following guarantees were provided to the Company by its parent company
and other related entities as security for its borrowings:

1. Guarantee from Atterbury Cyprus Limited to secure bank borrowings for the
amount €23.200.000 (Note 20).

2. Guarantea from The Malt of Cyprus (MC) Plc to secure bank borrowings for the
amount of €23.000,000 {Note 20).

(vi) Contigencies

The Company guarantees the loan of The Mall of Cyprus (MC} Plc for the amount
of €06,500.000. No liabilities are expected to arise.

26 Events after the balance sheet date

Thete were no material events after the balance sheef date, which have a bearing on the
understanding of the financial statements.
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27  Accounting policies before 1 January 2018

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, and
represents amounts recelvable for the sale of goods and services in the ordinary course of
the Company's aciivities, net of value added taxes, returns and discounts.

The Company recognises revenue wheh the amount of revenue can be reliably measured,
when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity and when specific
criteria have been met for each of the Company's activities as described below. The
Company bases its estimate of return on historical results, taking into consideration the
type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.
Revenues earned by the Company are recognised on the following bases:

(i) Income from rights for use of space

The income from rights for use of space is recognised on an accrual basis
according to the substance of the relevant adjustments.

{li}  Interest Income
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.

(I Lease Income

Income arising on operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
lease tarm.

Financlal asseis

] Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories: financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and recejvables, held to maturity
investments and available for sale financial assets. The classification depends on
the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. Management determines
the classification of financial assets at initial recognition and in the case of assefs
classified as held to maturity, re-evaluates this designation at the end of each

reporting pariod.
- Financlal assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub categories: financial assets held for irading and
those designated at fair value through proftt or loss at inception. A financial
asset Is classified as held for trading if acquired principally for the purpose
of selling in the short term. Financial assets designated as at fair value
through profit or Joss at inception are those that are managed and thair
performance Is evaluated on a falr value basis, in accordance with the
Company's documented investment strategy. Information about these
financial assets is provided internally on a fair value basis to the Company's
key management personnel. Assats in this category are classified as
current assets if they are sither held for trading or are expecied to be
realised within twelve months of the balance sheet dafe.
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27

(i)

Accounting policies before 1 January 2018 (continued)

. Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are nonh derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoled in an active market and for
which there is no intention of trading the receivable. They are included in
current assets, except for maturities greater than twelve months after the
batance sheet date. These are classified as non current assets. The
Company’s loans and recelvables comprise "trade raceivables”, “loan
receivable”, “other receivables”, “cash and cash equivalents” and “bank
deposits with original maturity above 3 months® in the balance shest.

. Held-to-maturity investments

Held to maturity investments are non derivative financial assets with fixed or
delerminable payments and fixed maturities that the Company's
management has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity that do
not meet the definition of loans and receivables. During the year, the
Company did not hold any investmants in this category.

. Available-for-sale financial assets

Avallable-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated in this category if they do not have fixed maturities and fixed or
determinable payments and management intends to hold them for the
medium to long term or not classified in any of the other categories. They
are included in non-current assets, unless the investment matures or
management intends to dispose of the investment within twelve months of
the balance sheet date.

Recognltion and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade
date which is the date on which the Company commits to purchase or sell the
asset. [nvestments are initially recognised at falr value plus transaction costs for all
financial assets not carrled at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets
carried at fair vaiue through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value and
transaction costs are expensed in profit or loss. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or
have been fransferred and the Company has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership.

Available for sale financial assets and financlal assets at falr value through profit or
loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables and held to
maturity financial assets are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
mathod.

Gains or losses arising from changes In the fair value of the “financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss” category are presented in profit or loss within "other
(losses)/gains - net” in the period in which they arise. Dividend income from
financial assets at falr value through profit or loss is recognised in the profit or loss
as part of other income when the Company’s right o receive payments is
established.
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27
{if)

{it)

Accounting pollcles before 1 January 2018 (continued)

Recognition and measurement (continued)

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in a foreign currency
and classified as available-for-sale are analysed betwesn franslation differences
resulting from changes in amartised cost of the security and other changas in the
carrying amount of the security. The translation differences on monetary securities
are recognised in profit or loss, while translation differences on non-monetary
securities are recognised in other comprehensive income. Changes in the fair
value of monetary and non-monetary securities classified as available-for-sale are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

When securities classified a5 available-for-sale are sold or impaired, the
accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in other comprehensive income are
included in profit or loss as gaine and losses on “available-for-sale financial
assets”,

Interest on available-for-sale sectrities calculated using the effective interest
method is recognised In the profit or loss as part of other income. Dividends on
available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss as part of other
income when the Company's right fo receive payments is established.

Impalrment of financial assats

The Company assesses at the balance shest date whether thera is ohjective
svidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.

A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses
are incurred only if there is objective evidence of impaiment as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the inltlal recognition of the asset {2 'loss event’)
and that loss avent (or events) has an impact on the astimated future cash flows of
the flnancial assat or group of financlal assets that can be rellably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group of
debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation, and where observable data indicate that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in
arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults,

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss Is meaasured as the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated
futura cash flows (excluding future credit losees that have not been incurred)
discountad at the financial asset’s ariginal effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset fs reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised in the
profit or loss. If a loan or held-to-maturity investment has a variable interest rate,
the discount rate for meastiring any Impairment loss I8 the current effective Interest
rate determined under the contract. As a practical expedient, the Company may
measure impairment on the basis of an Instrument's fair velue using an obsarvable

market price.
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impainnment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impaimment was

recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of
the previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in the profit or loss.
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27  Accounting policies before 1 January 2018 (continued)

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is also evidence
that the assefs are impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale
financlal assets, the cumulative loss —~ measured as the difference betwean the
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
financial asset previously recognised in profit or loss - is removed from equity and
recoghised in profit or loss.

Impalrment losses recoghised in the profit or lass on aquity instruments are nat
reversed through the profit or loss. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a
debt instrument classifled as available for sale increases and the Increase can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised
in profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed through the profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits
held at cali with banks with original maturities of three months or less that are readlly
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject io an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and bank overdrafts. In the balance sheet bank overdrafts are shown
within borrowings in current liabilities.

interest income

Interast income is recognised using the effective interest method. When a loan receivable
is impaired, the Company reduces the camying amount to its recoverahle amount, being
the estimated future cash flows discounted at tha original effective interest rate ofthe
instrument and continues unwinding the discount as interast income. Interest income on
impaired loans and receivables is recognised using the original effective interest rate.

Trade receivables

Trade recelvables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment, A
provision for impairment of trade receivables is established when there is abjective
evidence that the Company will not be able to collect ail amounts due according to the
original terms of receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that
the dabtor will enter bankruptoy or delinquency In payments are considered indicators that
the other receivable is impaired. The amount of the provision Is the difference batween the
carrying amount and the recoverable amount, being the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an aliowance account,
and the amount of the loss is recognised in profit or loss within “administrative expenses”.
When a trade receivable is uncollectibis, It is written off against the allowance account for
other receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against "administrative expenses” in profit or loss.
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27  Accounting policies before 1 January 2018 {continued)
Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initiaily at fair value, net of transaction costs incumred.
Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised cost. Any difference betwesn the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption valuae is recognised in profit or loss
over the period of the borrowings, using the effective interest method, unless they are
directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset, in
which case they are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.

The carrying amount of the bank borrowings of the Company is adjusted to reflect revised
estimated cash flows. The Company recalculates the carrying amount of the borrowings,
by computing the present value of estimated future cash flows at the financlal Instrument's
original effactive inferest rate. The adjustment is recognised in profit or loss within finance

cost.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction cosis of the
loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In
this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down ocours. To the exient there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the feeis
capitalised as a prepayment {for liquidity sesvices) and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when tha obligation specifiad in the
contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrylng amount
of a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the
consideration pald, including any non-cash assels transfemed or liabilities assumed, Is
recognised in profit or loss as other Income or finance costs.

A substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial iability or a part of it is
accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financlal Rabiiity and the recognition of
a new financial liability. Any gain or loss on extinguishment is recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that it arlses as a result of transactions with shareholders acting in
their capacity as shareholders when it is recognised directly in equity. The terms are
considered to be substantially different if the discounted present value of the cash flows
under the new terms, including any fees pald net of any fees received and discounted
using the original effeclive interest rate, is at least 10% different from the discounted
present value of the remaining cash flows of the original financial llability. Any costs or
fees Incurred ars recognised as part of the gain or loss on the extinguishment,

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with
the borrowing of funds, including interest on borrowings, amortisation of discounts or
premium relating to borrowings, amortisation of ancillary costs incurred in connection with
the arrangement of barrowings, finance lease charges and exchange differences arising
from forelgn currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to

Interest costs.
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27  Accounting policies before 1 January 2018 (continued)

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of a qualifying asset, being an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset,
when it is probable that they will result In future economic benefits to the Company and the
costs can be measured reliably.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities, unless the Company has an unconditional
right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the balance sheet
date.

Independent Auditor's Report on pages 8 {0 12.
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The Board of Directors of the public Company “The Mall of Engomi (ME) Plc” (the “Company™),
on the _2[ April 2019, approved the audited financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2018. The Board further resolved that no dividend shall be declared for the
aforementioned period.

Copies of the full and complete text of the financial statements for the period ended 31 December
2018 can be obtained from the registered office of the Company at the Mall of Cyprus 3, Vergina
str., Strovolos, Nicosia, Cyprus or by sending an email request at christos.kafouris/aneo.law
without any charge.
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